Public Document Pack

Agenda for a meeting of the Bradford West Area
Committee to be held on Wednesday, 27 February 2019
at 6.00 pm in Committee Room 1 - City Hall, Bradford
Members of the Committee – Councillors
MEMBERS: LABOUR COUNCILLORS
A Ahmed
Akhtar
Amran
Duffy
Engel
Kamran Hussain
Mohammed
Nazir
Shaheen

ALTERNATE
MEMBERS:
COUNCILLORS
Azam
Dunbar
Arshad Hussain
Shabir Hussain
Lal
Mullaney
Shabbir
Swallow
Thirkill

LABOUR

NOTES:





This agenda can be made available in Braille, large print or tape format on request by
contacting the Agenda contact shown below.
The taking of photographs, filming and sound recording of the meeting is allowed
except if Councillors vote to exclude the public to discuss confidential matters covered
by Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. Recording activity should be
respectful to the conduct of the meeting and behaviour that disrupts the meeting (such
as oral commentary) will not be permitted. Anyone attending the meeting who wishes
to record or film the meeting's proceedings is advised to liaise with the Agenda Contact
who will provide guidance and ensure that any necessary arrangements are in place.
Those present who are invited to make spoken contributions to the meeting should be
aware that they may be filmed or sound recorded.
If any further information is required about any item on this agenda, please contact the
officer named at the foot of that agenda item.

Decisions on items marked * are not Executive functions and may not be called in
under Paragraph 8.7 of Part 3E of the Constitution.
From:
To:
Parveen Akhtar
City Solicitor
Agenda Contact:
Asad Shah, Committee Secretariat
City Hall, Bradford BD1 1HY
Phone: 01274 432280

A. PROCEDURAL ITEMS
1.

ALTERNATE MEMBERS (Standing Order 34)
The City Solicitor will report the names of alternate Members who are
attending the meeting in place of appointed Members.

2.

DISCLOSURES OF INTEREST
(Members Code of Conduct - Part 4A of the Constitution)
To receive disclosures of interests from members and co-opted
members on matters to be considered at the meeting. The disclosure
must include the nature of the interest.
An interest must also be disclosed in the meeting when it becomes
apparent to the member during the meeting.
Notes:

3.

(1)

Members may remain in the meeting and take part fully in
discussion and voting unless the interest is a disclosable
pecuniary interest or an interest which the Member feels would
call into question their compliance with the wider principles set
out in the Code of Conduct. Disclosable pecuniary interests
relate to the Member concerned or their spouse/partner.

(2)

Members in arrears of Council Tax by more than two months
must not vote in decisions on, or which might affect, budget
calculations, and must disclose at the meeting that this
restriction applies to them. A failure to comply with these
requirements is a criminal offence under section 106 of the
Local Government Finance Act 1992.

(3)

Members are also welcome to disclose interests which are not
disclosable pecuniary interests but which they consider should
be made in the interest of clarity.

(4)

Officers must disclose interests in accordance with Council
Standing Order 44.

MINUTES
Recommended –
That the minutes of the meetings held on 19 September, 24
October, 28 November 2018 and 30 January 2019 be signed as
correct records (previously circulated).
(Asad Shah – 01274 432280)

2

4.

INSPECTION OF REPORTS AND BACKGROUND PAPERS
(Access to Information Procedure Rules – Part 3B of the Constitution)
Reports and background papers for agenda items may be inspected by
contacting the person shown after each agenda item. Certain reports
and background papers may be restricted.
Any request to remove the restriction on a report or background paper
should be made to the relevant Strategic Director or Assistant Director
whose name is shown on the front page of the report.
If that request is refused, there is a right of appeal to this meeting.
Please contact the officer shown below in advance of the meeting if
you wish to appeal.
(Asad Shah - 01274 432280)

5.

PUBLIC QUESTION TIME
(Access to Information Procedure Rules – Part 3B of the Constitution)
To hear questions from electors within the District on any matter this is
the responsibility of the Committee.
Questions must be received in writing by the City Solicitor in
Room 112, City Hall, Bradford, BD1 1HY, by mid-day on Monday
25 February 2019.
(Asad Shah - 01274 432280)

B. BUSINESS ITEMS
6.

CONSULTATION ON THE PREVENTION AND EARLY HELP
ESTATES STRATEGY PROPOSAL
Following decision by Executive of 5 February 2019, the report of the
Interim Strategic Director, Children’s Services (Document “AC”)
presents the proposal for consultation for the use of buildings within the
Prevention and Early Help Service.
This follows: the creation of a new 0-19 years Prevention and Early
Help Service that was informed by a public consultation carried out
between November 2017 and February 2018; and a decision by
Council Executive Committee of the 3rd of April 2018 that the use of
buildings be reviewed to look for ways in which the two year additional
funding for staffing could be sustained through different use of
buildings assets.

3

1 - 26

Recommended:
Bradford West Area Committee to note the details of this report
and make comment.
(Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee)
(Jenny Cryer – 01274 432438)
7.

YOUTH SERVICE UPDATE - BRADFORD WEST

27 - 46

The report of the Strategic Director, Place (Document “AD”) gives an
update on work undertaken by the Youth Service in the Bradford West
Area in 2018-19.
Recommended –
That the work undertaken by the Youth Service in the Bradford
West Area as detailed in this report be welcomed.
(Children’s Services Overview and Scrutiny Committee)
(Nicola Stott – 01274 431323)
8.

BRADFORD WEST AREA COMMITTEE ALLOCATION OF
COMMUNITY BUILDINGS GRANTS FOR 2019 - 2021 AND
APPROVAL FOR THE DISTRICT WIDE ALLOCATION

47 - 52

The report of the Strategic Director, Place (Document “AE”) outlines
the recommendations of the Bradford West Area Committee Grants
Advisory Group for the allocation of Community Buildings Grants 20192021. It also includes the recommendation of the Area Chairs for the
District Wide allocation of Community Building Grants 2019-21.
Recommended –
That Bradford West Area Committee approves the Community
Buildings Grants as outlined in 3.1 of Document “AE”.
(Corporate Overview and Scrutiny Committee)
(Mahmood Mohammed – 01274 437399)

THIS AGENDA AND ACCOMPANYING DOCUMENTS HAVE BEEN PRODUCED, WHEREVER POSSIBLE, ON RECYCLED PAPER

4

Agenda Item 6/

Report of the Interim Strategic Director Children’s
Services to the meeting of Bradford West Area
Committee to be held on 27 February 2019

AC
Subject:
Consultation on the Prevention and Early Help Estates Strategy proposal

Summary statement:
Following decision by Council Executive Committee of the 5 February 2019, this report
presents the proposal for consultation for the use of buildings within the Prevention and
Early Help Service.
This follows: the creation of a new 0-19 years Prevention and Early Help Service that was
informed by a public consultation carried out between November 2017 and February 2018;
and a decision by Council Executive Committee of the 3rd of April 2018 that the use of
buildings be reviewed to look for ways in which the two year additional funding for staffing
could be sustained through different use of buildings assets.

Gladys Rhodes-White
Interim Strategic Director Children’s
Services

Portfolio:

Report Contact: Jenny Cryer

Overview & Scrutiny Area:

Phone: (01274) 432438
E-mail: jenny.cryer@bradford.gov.uk

Children and Families

Children’s Services

Page 1

1. SUMMARY
1.1

The report presents the proposal for the use of buildings within the Prevention
and Early Help Service.

1.2

This follows: the creation of a new 0-19 years Prevention and Early Help
Service that was informed by a public consultation carried out between
November 2017; and February 2018 and a decision by Council Executive
Committee of the 3rd of April 2018 that the use of buildings be reviewed to look
for ways in which the two year additional funding for staffing could be
sustained through different use of buildings assets.

1.3

Each of the five Area Committees will be presented with the contents of the
report to Executive of the 5 February 2019 for their comment. This commences
with the report to this Area Committee, Bradford West, on the 27 February and
concludes with the report to Bradford East Area Committee on the 21st March
2019.

1.4

The public consultation runs from the 13th February until the 7 May 2019.
Following this a report with recommendations, informed by the consultation
feedback, will be presented to Council Executive in July 2019.

2. BACKGROUND
2.1

Bradford has undergone a significant change programme in relation to
Prevention and Early Help Services. At the Executive on 7 November 2017
Members approved a public consultation be carried out between 15 November
2017 and 12 February 2018 on the preferred model.

2.2

Following this consultation Executive on 3 April 2018 approved a Family Hub
model for a new Prevention and Early Help Service which is now being
implemented. The new service brings together a range of existing services to
form a new set of preventative and early help arrangements for children, young
people and families. By working in a more coordinated way with partners and
communities, the aim is that the new arrangements will deliver more effective
and efficient ways of whole family and community based working.

2.3

Bradford West Area Committee received a report about the new approved
model at their meeting of the 27 June 2018.

2.4

The aim of the new model is to:







deliver new 0-19 Prevention and Early Help Service targeting those
communities/neighbourhoods with the poorest outcomes;
deliver the Children’s Centre core offer to support school readiness,
parenting skills and family health in early childhood;
ensure high levels of early education quality and take up;
support education and attendance as a priority;
ensure intensive support for those families in greatest need;
cut out duplication and provide a ‘whole family’ approach so families do

Page 2

not receive a series of interventions from different services.
2.5

During the consultation there was consistent feedback that stakeholders
wished to see a review of buildings to maximise the staffing resource allocated
to the new Family Hub model.

2.6

In response to this Council Executive agreed an additional £500,000 per
annum for 2018/19 and 2019/20 be allocated to support transition into the new
model. This funding has been used to increase the number of Prevention
Workers and Key Workers.

2.7

Executive on 3 April 2018 further resolved “That the Strategic Director of
Children’s Services in consultation with the Portfolio Holder produce a detailed
plan on the best collective use of buildings across the Council, with key
partners and communities, to sustain as much funding into front line workers
by 2020/21, and which would be subject to further consultation as required”.

2.8

As a result of that decision, a multi-agency work stream was established
including representatives from Prevention and Early Help, social care, health,
VCS, public health, youth service, neighbourhoods, libraries and Estates. The
work of this group has informed the proposal set out in this report and form the
basis for consultation.

2.9

There are currently 41 buildings across the City within the scope of the
proposals for consultation, which deliver some level of prevention and early
help provision for Children and Families. Most of the buildings are known as
Children’s Centres. These buildings have developed over a number of phases
funded predominantly by capital monies from Central Government.

2.10 A Sure Start children’s centre is defined as a place, or group of places, where
local families with young children can go and enjoy facilities and receive
support that they need:




which is managed by or on behalf of, or under arrangements with, the local
authority with a view to securing that early childhood services in the local
authority’s area is made available in an integrated way;
through which early childhood services are made available (either by
providing the services on site, or by providing advice and assistance on
gaining access to services elsewhere); and
at which activities for young children are provided.

2.11 The Sure Start Children’s Centre programme was expanded over time and
councils were directed to open Children’s Centres in school settings; in all
communities and at a ratio of one Centre to 800 children under the age of 5.
This now means that some delivery sites are not situated in the best place for
the new Prevention and Early Help delivery model to deliver targeted family
centred support. The new model extends to older children and families and the
current sites were focused on early years provision and include in some cases
private childcare provision.

Page 3

2.12 All 41 Children’s Centre sites in the District were the subject of a review in
2013-14 which led to a report to Executive on 4 November 2014 setting out
proposals for transfer to new delivery arrangements for Children’s Centre
services across the district. This reflected a local vision to integrate the early
years offer as part of the wider neighbourhood offer and to help to deliver
within the agreed budget.
2.13 As a result of the extensive consultation during this review in 2014, the
Executive resolved that a cluster arrangement be approved. The proposal
included that:

“9 of the sites that will be delivering services will no longer be registered
as Sure Start Children’s Centres”. These sites can be found in Section 9
of this report.
2.14 Feedback from consultation during the previous review in 2013-14 reinforced
that services should be planned and organised to be responsive to the needs
of families and not be dependent on a building.
2.15 Statutory Guidance issued by the DfE (Sure Start Children’s Centres statutory
guidance April 2013) places a duty on the Council to consult before:
1. Opening a new Children’s Centre;
2. Making a significant change to the range and nature of services provided
through a Children’s Centre and/or how they are delivered, including
significant changes to services provided through linked sites; or
3. Closing a Children’s Centre; or reducing the services provided to such an
extent that it no longer meets the statutory definition of a Sure Start
Children’s Centre.
2.16 Statutory guidance on Children’s Centres confirms that the focus should be on
delivery of a service offer and not necessarily a focus on buildings. It follows
from the statutory definition that Children’s Centres are as much about making
appropriate and integrated services available as they are about providing
premises in particular geographical areas.
2.17 Prior to any changes consultation is required with all stakeholders and
interested parties where proposals are for delivery to change significantly and/
or cease. The Statutory Guidance requires the Council to consult everyone
who could be affected by the proposed changes and gives examples of local
families, those who use Children’s Centres, Children’s Centres staff, any
advisory board members and service providers. Particular attention should be
given to ensuring disadvantaged families and minority groups participate in
consultations.
2.18 A local authority should not close an existing children’s centre site in any
reorganisation of provision unless it can demonstrate that where it decides to
close a children’s centre site, the outcomes for children, particularly the most
disadvantaged, would not be adversely affected and will not compromise the
duty to have sufficient children’s centres to meet local need. The starting point
should be a presumption against closure of children’s centres and should;

Page 4



take into account the views of local families and communities in deciding
what is sufficient children’s centre provision;



take account of families crossing local authority borders to use children’s
centres in their authority. Families and carers are free to access early
childhood services where it suits them best; and



take into account wider duties under section 17 of the Children Act 1989
and under the Child Poverty Act 2010.

2.19 In proposing changes, the Council will also need to demonstrate that it has due
regard to the Public Sector Equality Duty and its duties under the Childcare Act
2006, including the duty to improve the well-being of young children and
reduce inequalities between them
2.20 The building review
The multi-agency group undertook a full review of all 41 buildings and asked a
number of key questions of each setting in the context of how we can best
serve our communities:
1. Does the building have sufficient space to create an Integrated 019yrs Family Hub, which can provide sufficient accommodation for
staff including school nursing, health visiting teams and oral health
programmes in each of the 4 Areas?
2. Is the building in a priority area? The criteria for this was areas that are
consistently identified by the Family Needs Assessment to be where
families have the poorest outcomes and have the most need for support.
These were outlined in the original proposals for the Prevention and Early
Help Service and can be found in Appendix 1
3. What are the opportunities to reduce the costs associated with these
buildings, while maximising the wider collective assets and
community resources available?
2.21 When considering the wider collective assets and the potential to close or
dispose of a building, the group also considered the risk of claw back. Claw
back of funding is triggered where an asset funded wholly or partly by the
Government is disposed of or the asset is no longer used to meet the aims and
objectives consistent with the original grants.
2.22 Local authorities must notify the Department for Education of any plans to
dispose of grant funded assets. Local authorities should operate on the
presumption that claw-back will be enforced. However, subject to prior
approval from the DfE, claw-back may be waived or deferred where an asset is
sold and the proceeds are reinvested in another asset for a similar purpose
consistent with the aims of the grant.

Page 5

2.23 Disposal means a sale, transfer, or change of use of a capital asset. It includes
the transfer of ownership of a lease, or freehold assets.
2.24 For some sites this risk may be mitigated by the delivery of services to children
and families by other providers than the Council (e.g. nursery schools or to
provide additional school places or for expansion by the current building
occupier to deliver services that meet the aims and objectives of the original
grant). This is referred to in section 9 of this report as “an appropriate
alternative use”. This means that where possible we will identify other services
for children, young people and families that can use the buildings, to ensure
their on-going sustainability as a community resource.
2.25 Although this has been a consideration there has been no presumption prior to
formal consultation that this may be an option. The capital grant claw back is
for a period of 25 years and any such proposals would have to be fully scoped
and the risk understood on a building by building basis.
2.26 Using this methodology the multi-agency group identified the need for at least
one Integrated Family Hub in each of the four Areas. The Family Hubs will
comprise of an integrated staff team with on-site delivery of services for
children, young people and families, including, school nursing and health
visitors, other health colleagues and Children’s Services staff and delivery.
2.27 Where additional staff accommodation space is required integrated staff sites
have also been identified (these will not be delivery sites) but will provide a
base from which the Prevention and Early Help workforce can reach the wider
district.
2.28 A number of potential delivery sites were also identified for each of the Areas,
which are existing Children Centre sites. Delivery sites would offer a reduced
number of hours of Prevention and Early Help services per week. However,
under this proposal they will have no permanent staff based on site, will have
limited reception facilities, but will be located in places where communities can
easily access services.
2.29 The Family Hubs teams are already using a number of local venues for
delivery of services not in Children Centres in order to be more appropriate for
the 0-19 age range. As the Family Hub model develops it is intended that
partners, community and voluntary organisations and families will help to
identify more locations for Family Hub services. Therefore in addition to the
Integrated Hubs and the delivery sites the model will incorporate the use of
locality or community based provision in order to meet local need, which will be
paid for by the hour as required.
2.30 For example in the South Hub area over 30 stay and play/parent and toddler
group sessions per week are being delivered by a range of voluntary and
community organisations in venues other than children centre buildings. A
timetable for each of the Hub areas is available on the Council’s website.
(Family Hub website.)
2.31 In addition to the universal provision promoted in the Family Hub web page,

Page 6

targeted parenting programmes for families with children aged 0-19 years are
delivered in a number of school settings. For example, Bradford Academy runs
Family Links, Talking Teens and the Freedom programmes into which
Prevention and Early Help staff can refer families. St Columbus Primary
School runs a rolling programme of Family Links into which families from the
South Hub can be referred. An example of best practice in collaborative
working is between St Johns Primary and Fearnville Primary schools, who
work together to deliver a Family Links programme at St John’s Church.
School staff were trained by Prevention and Early Help and referrals can be
made by the Hub into the programme.
2.32 This community asset based approach will also help to identify and maximise
the opportunities to support and sustain local organisations, to work together
with partners to deliver integrated early childhood services and to generate
savings.
2.33 Through the review of the building assets the group also identified the potential
to create an All Age Community Hub based in the TFD centre, Holme Wood.
The building is located in the heart of the Holme Wood estate and is already
used to deliver the Youth offer in the area. In addition there is a co-located
community library on site and a number of voluntary and community sector
providers deliver provision mainly for young people. The consultation will
explore options to create a Hub incorporating the 0-19 years integrated Family
Hub for the South Area, Adults Services and services delivered by other
partners from within and outside the Council.
2.34 Under the proposal from the review all families will continue to have access to
a range of universal services across the District; the proposals will ensure that
support is targeted to the most vulnerable families and through venues based
in communities. The Authority is aware that it must make arrangements so that
there are sufficient children’s centres, so far as reasonably practicable, to meet
local need. Additionally the Authority is aware of its duty to consider whether
the early childhood services it provides, together with local commissioners of
health services, should be provided through children’s centres in the area, but
noting that a children centre can be either a singular site or a group of places
where families receive support.
3.

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS

3.1

The 0-19 years Prevention and Early Help Family Hub model sits alongside
wider cross-agency and system initiatives such as the Integrated Early Years
Strategy, Signs of Safety implementation, the Integrated Care Pathway, selfcare, ESIF/Lottery Stronger Families programme and B Positive Pathways.

3.2

The 0-19 years Family Hubs will incorporate Public Health 0-19 years
children’s services including Health Visiting, Family Nurse Partnership, School
Nursing and Oral Health services. The creation of Integrated Family Hubs will
ensure that these services are fully aligned and integrated.

Page 7

3.3

The workforce change process for the Prevention and Early Help Service
agreed at the 3rd April 2018 Executive has now been completed. The 0-19
years Family Hub teams covering the 4 areas of the District: West, South, East
and Keighley/Shipley have been established. The Family Hub model of coproduced service delivery for Prevention and Early Help, as recommended, is
starting to develop.

3.4

The Family Hubs are already utilising community venues to support the
delivery of services for children, young people and families and the proposed
plan in this report will help to further identify and finalise suitable venues in
communities.

4.

FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL

4.1

There has been a total of £21.5m General Sure Start Capital grant funding
allocated across these sites. Any proposed future alternative use must take
account of the potential for claw back of capital grant.

4.2

The estimated 2018-19 revenue cost relating to the current buildings is £1.2m.

4.3

The additional transitional funding for 2018-20 (£500k over 2 financial years
totalling £1m) in support of additional staff expires in March 2020.

4.4

It is envisaged that this premises review will generate potential savings that
can be utilised to meet the end of the transitional funding in March 2020.

5.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES

5.1

The risks are managed in accordance with the Council’s procedures. This is a
large programme of work that requires delivery at a considerable pace. It will
require significant meaningful engagement and formal consultation with
partners, parents and families, schools, early years settings, the VCS, the
workforce, the DfE and other interested parties.

5.2

Risks in relation to individual sites will be outlined in the project plan.

5.3

Delivery is overseen by the Great Start Good Schools Outcome Board. An
Enabler Group including Legal, Estates and Finance supports implementation
of the Programme. A risk register is in place.

6.

LEGAL APPRAISAL

6.1

The Local Authority must ensure it complies with the duty to consult under the
Childcare Act 2006.

6.2

The DfE Sure Start Children’s Centre statutory guidance April 2013 provides
that the Local Authority must ensure there is consultation with interested
parties before any significant changes are made to Children’s Centre provision

Page 8

in their area including how they are delivered or provided through linked sites.
6.3

The Local Authority must consult before closing a children’s centre or reducing
the services provided to such an extent that it no longer meets the statutory
definition of a Sure Start children’s centre set out in the Report at 2.2

6.4

When a local authority puts forward any proposals on the change of use of
capital projects which were funded through the Sure Start and Early Years
Capital Grant it must inform the Department of Education of the proposed
change.

6.5

Consultation must take place with all interested parties when proposals are still
at a formative stage. Sufficient reasons must be put forward for the proposal to
allow for intelligent consideration and response. Adequate time must also be
given for consideration and to respond to the consultation and conscientious
account must be taken of responses when a decision is made. Whilst all
options do not have to be consulted upon they must be sufficiently clear to
enable consultees to understand the proposals.

6.6

The Local Authority must have regard to its public sector equality duties under
section 149 of the Equality Act 2010 when exercising its functions and making
any decisions. The Local Authority must carry out an Equalities Impact
Assessment to enable intelligent consideration of the proposals. The Local
Authority must have due regard to the information in the Equalities Impact
Assessment in making the decision to commence consultation on these
proposals.

6.7

Consultation must be easily understandable by those most likely to be affected
by the proposed changes. The language should not be technical and what is
being proposed and the impact of the proposals must be in plain English.

6.8

The Children Act 1989 sets out the provision of services for children and their
families. Section 17 places a duty on every local authority to safeguard and
promote the welfare of children who are in need within their area.
The Council has duties under the Childcare Act 2006 which include:







Section 1 - duty to improve well-being of young children & reduce
inequalities between them;
Section 3 - to make arrangements so that early childhood services are
integrated, accessible and benefit young children and their parents;
Section 5A - make arrangements for sufficient Children’s Centres, so far
as
reasonably practicable to meet local need;
Section 5D - duty on local authorities to ensure there is consultation
before
any significant changes are made to children’s centre provision in their
area
Section 5E - duty on local authorities, local commissioners of health
services
and Jobcentre Plus to consider whether the early childhood services they

Page 9

provide should be provided through children’s centres in the area
7.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

7.1

EQUALITY & DIVERSITY

7.1.1 S149 of the Equality Act 2010 (the Public Sector Equality Duty) provides as
follows:
(1)

A public authority must, in the exercise of its functions have due regard
to the need to;
(a)
(b)
(c)

(3)

eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other
conduct that is prohibited by or under the Equality Act 2010
advance equality of opportunity between persons who share a
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it
foster good relations between persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic and persons who do not share it

Having due regard to the need to advance equality of opportunity
between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and
persons who do not share it involves having due regard, in particular, to
the need to;
(a)
(b)
(c)

remove or minimise disadvantages suffered by persons who
share a relevant protected characteristic that are connected to
that characteristic;
take steps to meet the needs of persons who share a relevant
protected characteristic that are different from the needs of
persons who do not share it;
encourage persons who share a relevant protected characteristic
to participate in public life or in any other activity in which
participation by such persons is disproportionately low.

(4)

The steps involved in meeting the needs of disabled persons that are
different from the needs of persons who are not disabled include, in
particular, steps to take account of disabled persons’ disabilities.

(5)

Having due regard to the need to foster good relations between
persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons who
do not share it involves having due regard, in particular, to the need to;
(a)
(b)

(6)

tackle prejudice, and
promote understanding.

Compliance with the duties in this section may involve treating some
persons more favourably than others; but that is not to be taken as
permitting conduct that would otherwise be prohibited by or under this
Act.

Page 10

7.1.2 An Equalities Impact Assessment for the proposals is attached as Appendix 2.
7.2

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
There are no direct sustainability implications arising from this report. Any
development or changes to buildings undertaken as a result of these proposals
will be undertaken in a sustainable way which minimises the future impact of
the Local Authority’s carbon footprint.

7.3

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS
The proposals for consultation would not impact on gas emissions.

7.4

COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
Through working differently across services we are seeking to minimise crime
and anti-social behaviour and its impact on individual families and
communities. This is a priority outcome area.

7.5

HUMAN RIGHTS ACT
There are no direct Human Rights implications arising from this report.

7.6

TRADE UNION
The trade unions will be fully consulted on the proposals and their feedback
will be incorporated into future reports to the Executive

7.7

WARD IMPLICATIONS
Ward Councillors will be formally consulted upon about how the proposals will
affect their Wards.

7.8

AREA COMMITTEE ACTION PLAN IMPLICATIONS
(for reports to Area Committees only)

7.8.1 Reports will be presented to each Area Committee about this proposal.
7.8.2 Each Area Committee will be asked for their views about the proposal for the
use of Prevention and Early Help Service building in their Area and across the
District.
7.8.3 Bradford West Area Committee Members are particularly directed to the
buildings within the proposal that fall within their area as detailed at point 9.9
Bradford West below.
7.9

IMPLICATIONS FOR CORPORATE PARENTING
It is important that appropriate venues are available across the District to

Page 11

enable Looked after Children to maintain contact with their family. Any impact
on maintaining contact will need to be reflected in the consultation.
7.10

ISSUES ARISING FROM PRIVACY IMPACT ASSESMENT

7.10.1 The City of Bradford Metropolitan District Council (the ‘Council’) is registered
with the Information Commissioners Office (ICO). For more information about
how the Council uses information, please refer to the general ‘Privacy Notice’
on the Council’s website.
7.10.2 Children’s Services will undertake a Privacy Impact Assessment to identify
any data protection and information security matters arising from the proposals
7.10.3 The legal basis for holding any data relating to buildings is contractual and
may relate to tenancy or other property type agreements. General Data
Protection Regulation (GDPR) principles relating to individual’s rights will be
fully respected.
7.10.4 Any need for partner agencies to share data would only be with the express
permission of the service users in the full knowledge of why and what it would
be used for. General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) principles relating to
any individuals data and rights under the Data Protection Act 2018 will be
respected.
8.

NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS
None

9.
9.1

PROPOSAL FOR CONSULTATION
Move to a tiered approach to support the delivery of 0-19yrs Prevention
and Early Help Service that will:






maximise use of wider locations in communities;
ensure a geographical spread of delivery sites across each area;
support continued delivery of school nursing & health visiting services
across the centres and develop integrated family hubs;
seek to reduce reliance on buildings and release as much money as
possible into front line workers.
deliver the new services where they are needed most based on the
outcome framework which has already identified those
wards/neighbourhoods with the highest levels of inequalities. See
Appendix 1.

This proposal for consultation will create the following in each of the 4 areas:


At least one Integrated Family Hub, which comprises of an integrated
staff team base in addition to having on site delivery of services for the

Page 12

public. Where necessary additional capacity will be created in an
Integrated Staff base.


Delivery sites offering a minimum of 8 hours of Prevention and Early
Help delivery per week, with reduced reception facilities. These are sites
which are located where communities can easily access services.



Community based provision; venues in addition to those already used
by the Family Hubs will be identified to meet local need. These will
generally be paid for by the hour as required.

9.2

Based on the agreed Family Hub model of delivery, work has already started
to create a number of Integrated Family Hubs sites in each of the 4 Hub areas.
These sites are existing Children’s Centres and were identified based on their
location and size in order to meet the needs of families and to accommodate
service delivery and staff. Details on these sites can be found in the tables
below.

9.3

The proposal identifies the Children Centre buildings that are suitable as
delivery sites, being in areas where they are needed the most and to ensure a
geographical spread of delivery across the district.

9.4

Using the principles of the review in section 2 a number of Children’s Centre
buildings were identified that no longer meet the needs of the service for the
delivery of prevention and early help services. During the consultation process
we will seek to establish “appropriate alternative use of these buildings”. This
means that where possible we will identify other services for children, young
people and families that could use the buildings. This will mitigate the risk of
claw back and ensure that where possible buildings continue to be used for
services for children and families.

9.5

In parallel with this we will identify sites within communities that are suitable for
the delivery of the new 0-19 years’ service. Priority areas will continue to have
access to services, under the proposal the venues where these are delivered
may change.

9.6

The proposal for consultation is that each area will make use of a network of
linked sites that work together. Some of these sites will be existing Children’s
Centre buildings operating as integrated family hubs, some will be existing
children’s centre buildings offering services and some will be local venues that
are in locations that can better meet the needs of children, young people and
families across the 0-19 age range.

9.7

The developing Family Hubs are already using a number of community venues
to deliver services and the intention is to identify through the consultation
further community venues in the Areas to maximise the use of wider locations
in communities.

9.8

Subject to the outcome of the consultation the proposals could result in some
Children’s Centre buildings no longer delivering services for children and
families. Where this is the case we will ensure that children and families that

Page 13

require a service will still be able to do so through a universal or targeted offer,
which may be delivered from a different location within the local area.
Where we are consulting on appropriate alternative use there is a potential that
currently registered sites may need to be de-registered as Children’s Centres.
For example, some schools have already expressed an interest in taking over
the space currently occupied by the Children’s Centre located on their
premises in order to expand or deliver further provision for their children and
families. In this case a currently registered Children’s Centre may need to be
de-registered. However, as this could be deemed as an appropriate alternative
use it is likely that this would reduce the risk of any claw back and the building
would continue to function as a resource for children and families in the area.
9.9

This proposal will involve consultation on the following proposals in
relation to each site:
KEIGHLEY/SHIPLEY
Current registered
Children’s Centres
Rainbow

Already in progress

Strong Close (Thwaites)
Owlet (Windhill/Shipley)
Current registered
Children’s Centres
Highfield

Integrated Staff base
Integrated Staff base
Proposal for consultation

Integrated Family Hub

Additional delivery
sites to be identified
in Keighley Central
priority area

Delivery Site

Priority Area (see appendix1)

Hirst Wood (Saltaire)
Low Fold (Keighley West)

Previously de-registered
Children’s
Centres/Delivery Sites
Daisy Chain (Silsden)

Assurance
appropriate Universal services
will continue to be
appropriate available through
local and community
venues which will be
identified during the
consultation process
Proposal for consultation
Assurance
Consult
on
alternative use
Consult
on
alternative use

Consult
on
alternative use
Baildon, (Sandal)
Consult
on
alternative use
Little Lane, (Ilkley)
Consult
on
alternative use
Treetops, (Haworth)
Consult
on
alternative use
Cornerstones
(Bingley Consult
on
Rural)
alternative use
Trinity 5 Rise (Bingley)
Consult
on
alternative use

Page 14

appropriate Universal services
will continue to be
appropriate available through
local and community
appropriate venues which will be
identified during the
appropriate consultation process
appropriate
appropriate

Menston and Burley

Consult
on
appropriate
alternative use
During the consultation process we will identify local/community venues to
ensure a geographical spread across the area.

Current registered
Children’s Centres
Reevy Hill, (Buttershaw)

SOUTH BRADFORD
Already in progress
Integrated Family Hub

Priority Area (see appendix1)

Current
registered Proposal for consultation
Children’s Centres
Bierley (re-located to Life
Delivery site
Centre)
Priority Area (see appendix1)

Holme Wood

To continue as a delivery site
until alternative site is
finalised.
Tyersal Sutton Community Consult on appropriate
Centre
alternative use and additional
Priority Area (see appendix1)
community venues to be
identified through the
consultation process for
targeted delivery.
Lidget
Green
(Great Consult on appropriate
Horton)
alternative use and additional
Priority Area (see appendix1)
community venues to be
identified through the
consultation process for
targeted delivery.
Priority Area (see appendix1)

Woodside
Wyke

Assurance
appropriate Universal services
will continue to be
available
through
appropriate
local and community
venues which will be
identified during the
consultation process
Proposal for consultation
Assurance
Consult
on
alternative use
Consult
on
alternative use

Previously de-registered
Children’s
Centres/Delivery Sites
Victoria Hall, (Queensbury) Consult
on
alternative use

New Site proposal
TFD – Holme Wood

appropriate Universal services
will continue to be
available through
local and community
venues which will be
identified during the
consultation process
Proposal for consultation
Consult on proposal to

Priority Area (see appendix1)

Page 15

develop an all age integrated
community hub.
During the consultation process we will identify local/community venues to
ensure a geographical spread across the area.

Current registered
Children’s Centres
Barkerend

EAST BRADFORD
Already in progress
Integrated Family Hub

Priority Area (see appendix1)

Gateway, (Ravenscliffe)

Integrated Family Hub

Priority Area (see appendix1)

Current
registered Proposal for consultation
Children’s Centres
Canterbury
Delivery Site
Priority Area (see appendix1)

Woodroyd (West Bowling)

Delivery Site

Priority Area (see appendix1)

Communityworks,
(Undercliffe)

Delivery Site

Priority Area (see appendix1)

Fagley

Delivery Site

Priority Area (see appendix1)

Mortimer
House,(Thornbury)

Consult on appropriate
alternative use and additional
Priority Area (see appendix1)
community venues to be
identified through the
consultation process for
targeted delivery.
Burnett Fields, (BD5 )
Consult on appropriate
Priority Area (see appendix1)
alternative use and additional
community venues to be
identified through the
consultation process for
targeted delivery.
Proposal for consultation
Parkland,
(Idle
and Consult on appropriate
Thackley)
alternative use

Page 16

Assurance
Universal services
will continue to be
available
through
local and community
venues which will be
identified during the
consultation process

During the consultation process we will identify local/community venues to
ensure a geographical spread across the area.

Current registered
Children’s Centres
Farcliffe, (Toller )

WEST BRADFORD
Already in progress
Integrated Family Hub

Priority Area (see appendix1)

Current registered
Proposal for consultation
Children’s Centres
Abbey Green, (Lumb Lane, Delivery Site
Green Lane, Manningham)
Priority Area (see appendix1)

Midland Road, (Valley
Road, Manningham)

Delivery Site

Priority Area (see appendix1)

St Edmund’s, (Girlington)

Delivery Site

Priority Area (see appendix1)

Farnham, (Great
Horton,City)
Priority Area (see appendix1)

Consult on appropriate
alternative use and additional
community venues to be
identified through the
consultation process for
targeted delivery.
Princeville, (Lidget Green, Consult on appropriate
City)
alternative use and additional
Priority Area (see appendix1)
community venues to be
identified through the
consultation process for
targeted delivery.
Heaton
Allerton, (Ley Top)
Crossley Hall, (Fairweather
Green)
Frizinghall
Previously de-registered
Children’s Centres/Delivery
Sites
Thornton

Assurance
Universal services
will continue to be
available through
local and community
venues which will be
identified during the
consultation process

Consult on appropriate
alternative use
Consult on appropriate
alternative use
Consult on appropriate
alternative use
Consult on appropriate
alternative use
Proposal for consultation Assurance
Consult on appropriate
alternative use

Page 17

Universal services
will continue to be
available through
local and community
venues which will be
identified during the
consultation process

During the consultation process we will identify local/community venues to
ensure a geographical spread across the area.
10.

RECOMMENDATIONS
Bradford West Area Committee to note the details of this report and make
comment.

11.

APPENDICES
Appendix 1 - Key ward level outcomes and deprivation statistics.
Appendix 2 - Equalities Impact Assessment.

12.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS









Sure Start Children’s Centre Statutory Guidance, Department for
Education (2013)
Report to Council Executive, 4th November 2014, New Delivery Model for
Bradford’s Children’s Centres.
Report to Council Executive 7th November 2017 Prevention and Early Help
– a proposed new model to support families and communities for the
future, including proposed changes to how we provide the children’s
centre core offer across the District.
Report to Council Executive 3rd April 2018, Prevention and Early Help – a
proposed new model to support families and communities for the future,
including proposed changes to how we provide the children’s centre core
offer across the District.
Report to Council Executive 5 February 2019 Prevention and Early Help
Estates Strategy
Link to Family Hub website

Page 18

Appendix 1
Current mapping of key ward level outcomes and deprivation statistics show that it is consistently the same wards that have the
poorest outcomes and the most need for support:

Page 19

Appendix 2
Equality Impact Assessment Form
Department

Children Services

Version no

0.1

Assessed by

Helen Johnston

Date created

28 November 2018

Approved by

Jenny Cryer

Date approved

12 December 2018

Updated by

Date updated

Final approval

Date signed off

The Equality Act 2010 requires the Council to have due regard to the need to


eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation;



advance equality of opportunity between different groups; and



foster good relations between different groups

Section 1: What is being assessed?
1.1

Name of proposal to be assessed.
Prevention and Early Help Estates Strategy

1.2

Describe the proposal under assessment and what change it would result in if
implemented.
The proposal for consultation aims to ensure that use of the buildings estate is
aligned with the new operating model for the Prevention and Early Help service and
that buildings are being used to their maximum benefit for the community.
The change would result in a reduction in the number of buildings from which
prevention and early help services are provided or are accessible to users across
the district. It is intended to align the building estate with the new operating model.
A multi-agency team established to make recommendations on the proposal
worked to the following principles:


Create at least one integrated family hub for staff teams and other service in
each of the 4 Hub Areas.
 Base services in communities and building on community assets
 Establish needs led and targeted support in areas of highest need
 Achieve reach through outreach and linking in and through wider community
provision and sites.
 Develop an agile approach so that service activities are able to be provided
flexibly across a range of sites based on need.
In making recommendations, the team also gave consideration to if a building was
in a priority area – priority being determined by a range of available data including
IMD 2015 rank, % of NEET, levels of young people who were unemployed etc.

Page 20

The resulting proposal for consultation is to move to a tiered buildings approach for
the delivery of Prevention and Early Help. In each cluster (four areas) it is
proposed to have:


At least one Integrated Family Hub, which comprise of an integrated staff
team base in addition to having on site delivery of services for the public.
Where necessary additional capacity will be created in an Integrated Staff
base.



Delivery sites offering a reduced number of hours of Prevention and Early
Help delivery per week, with no permanent staff based on site, limited
reception facilities, but located where communities can easily access
services.
Community based provision to be identified through consultation to meet
local need, where possible paid for by the hour as required.



The proposal meets the principles above and ensures that the new model for
Prevention & Early Help services can be delivered, in particular ensuring:




Statutory requirements continue to be met
Good outcomes for children are supported
As much resource as possible is deployed to work directly with children, families
and communities

The proposal for consultation will also:




Maximise use of wider locations in communities
Ensure geographic spread of delivery sites across each constituency
Support continued delivery of midwifery & health visiting services across
centres and develop family hubs;

Section 2: What the impact of the proposal is likely to be
2.1

Will this proposal advance equality of opportunity for people who share a
protected characteristic and/or foster good relations between people who
share a protected characteristic and those that do not? If yes, please explain
further.
Support will continue to be delivered across the district in line with the new PEH
operating model with a special emphasis on ensuring that some buildings that
deliver services and some buildings that are available for community use are
sustained in the most deprived areas.

2.2

Overall the proposal for consultation intends to support the new PEH operating
model – ensuring that all communities have access to services, that equality of
opportunity and a range of outcomes for babies, children and young people and
families is advanced.
Will this proposal have a positive impact and help to eliminate discrimination
and harassment against, or the victimisation of people who share a protected
characteristic? If yes, please explain further.

Page 21

Ensuring that services are delivered and activities are available in buildings in
deprived areas will mean that those with a range of protected characteristics should
find accessing services and provision easier – for instance those individuals and
families on low incomes.
2.3

Will this proposal potentially have a negative or disproportionate impact on
people who share a protected characteristic? If yes, please explain further.
The physical accessibility of buildings has not been taken into account when
developing these proposals therefore people with disabilities may be
disproportionately impacted. This may directly impact people who use the services
or those who care for them or support them.
Those on low incomes and not living in the priority areas may find it more difficult to
access targeted services due to the need to pay for travel, their working patterns,
child care arrangements etc. Universal services will still be accessible.
The equality impact assessment carried out indicates the proposal is likely to have
low to no impact across most protected characteristics.

2.4

Please indicate the level of negative impact on each of the protected
characteristics?
(Please indicate high (H), medium (M), low (L), no effect (N) for each)
Impact
(H, M, L, N)
L affects early years

Protected Characteristics:
Age

0-5 provision

Disability

L/M

Gender reassignment

N

Race

N

Religion/Belief

N

Pregnancy and maternity

L

Sexual Orientation

N

Sex
Marriage and civil partnership

L most users of CC
are female
N

Additional Consideration:
M

Low income/low wage
2.5

How could the disproportionate negative impacts be mitigated or eliminated?
(Note: Legislation and best practice require mitigations to be considered, but need
only be put in place if it is possible.)

Page 22

The possible disproportionate impact on people with disabilities could be mitigated
by ensuring that buildings identified for consultation within the proposal where
services and/or activities are expected to be delivered are reasonably accessible
and have undergone recent accessibility assessments, that remedial work is
undertaken where such a building in the proposal is not deemed to be reasonably
accessible and in the event that the building, following consultation and approval of
a finalised proposal, will be a site at which services and activities are delivered.
Ensuring a range of buildings delivering services are sited in deprived areas will
ensure those families and individuals on low incomes or wages have access to
services. People on low incomes or wages living outside of those deprived areas
will continue to have access to services through Early Help Gateway and there will
be activities and services available across all areas.
The PEH service is maintaining strong relationships with childcare and schools in
all areas and this means that vulnerable children and families will be able to access
support when needed regardless of the site of service delivery in their area. This
means that those children living in low income families in more affluent areas will
still be able to access support and activities.
Additionally the consultation around the proposal will also include consideration of
appropriate alternative use of some sites.
Section 3: Dependencies from other proposals
3.1

Please consider which other services would need to know about your
proposal and the impacts you have identified. Identify below which services
you have consulted, and any consequent additional equality impacts that
have been identified.
A comprehensive stakeholder consultation plan has been developed. The intention
is to consult with the following:

Children, young people, families, parents, carers

Education settings

Health colleagues

Police

Public and Voluntary sector

Community Partners

Businesses

Council employees

Elected members
The multi-agency group established to develop recommendations for this proposal
included representatives from the following:






Prevention and Early Help
Social Care
Health
Public Health
Youth Service

Page 23





Neighbourhood Services
Libraries and Estates
Voluntary and Community Sector

Section 4: What evidence you have used?
4.1

What evidence do you hold to back up this assessment?


Families needs assessment undertaken to support the remodelling of the
Prevention and Early Help service.
This document included considerable analysis which provided a baseline of data
covering a breadth of information from demographics, deprivation, maternity,
health; education and social services and this analysis underpinned the
development of the Prevention and Early Help service.
The Executive report and appendices discussed at the Council Executive on 7
November 2017 and 3 April 2018 outline the analysis gathered.

4.2



Feedback from the consultations that supported the remodelling of
Prevention and Early Help



Map of ward level outcomes and deprivation statistics to identify the most
deprived areas



Outputs from the multi-agency group
recommendations to inform the proposal.



Peopletoo analysis of consultation on Prevention and Early Help services

tasked

with

developing

Do you need further evidence?

The EIA will be reviewed in view of feedback from the extensive consultation that
will be taking place to inform further development of these proposals.
Section 5: Consultation Feedback
5.1

Results from any previous consultations prior to the proposal development.
Feedback from the extensive consultations that supported the remodelling of
Prevention and Early Help has informed this proposal.
A wider review of all prevention and early help provision that included consultation
with a wide range of stakeholders has informed this proposal. A summary of the
consultation and feedback is available in the report to Council Executive of the 7
November 2017 - Prevention and Early Help – a proposed new model to support
families and communities for the future, including proposed changes to how we
provide the children’s centre core offer across the District.

5.2

The departmental feedback you provided on the previous consultation (as at
5.1).

Page 24

The above feedback has informed this proposal.
5.3

Feedback from current consultation following the proposal development (e.g.
following approval by Executive for budget consultation).
The Council Executive of the 5th February 2019 will be asked to consider approving
the proposal for full consultation

5.4

Your departmental response to the feedback on the current consultation (as
at 5.3) – include any changes made to the proposal as a result of the
feedback.
Responses will be provided in July 2019 following the formal consultation during
February – May 2019.

Page 25

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7/

Report of the Strategic Director, Place to the meeting of
Bradford West Area Committee to be held on 27th
February 2019

AD
Subject:
Youth Service Update – Bradford West.

Summary statement:
This report gives an update on work undertaken by the Youth Service in the Bradford West Area in
2018-19.

Steve Hartley
Strategic Director
Place

Portfolio:

Report Contact: Nicole Stott
Phone: (01274 431323)
E-mail: nicole.stott@bradford.gov.uk

Overview & Scrutiny Area:

Neighbourhoods and Community Safety

Children’s Services

Page 27

1.

SUMMARY

1.1

This report gives an update on work undertaken by the Youth Service in the
Bradford West Area in 2018-19.

1.2

The Chair of the Bradford West Area Committee requested that the Youth Service
brings a report that outlines the following information:





Actual Youth Worker staffing structures in the five Constituency Areas
An update on Youth Service Activity in Bradford West
An update on Bradford West’s Youth Service allocated base budget, current
spend and projected spend for the financial year 2018-19
Outline future plans and direction of the Youth Service in Bradford West and
District wide

2.

BACKGROUND

2.1

The Bradford Council Youth Service is part of the wider Bradford District Youth
Offer that aims to ensure the provision of a range of activities and services that take
place in safe spaces, where young people can develop a sense of belonging,
socialise with their peers and develop relationships with adults they can trust. It
recognises that with the right supportive relationships, strong ambitions and good
opportunities all young people can realise their potential and be positive and active
members of society.

2.2

The Youth Service Vision statement is to work with partners to ensure that young
people grow up healthy, happy, informed and aspiring; proud of who they are,
where they come from, and actively involved in their community.

2.3

Youth Service priorities reflect the priorities of the Youth Service and are aligned to
the five Key Elements of the Bradford District Youth Offer. They are KPIs
Youth Offer Element 1 – Information, Advice and Guidance(IAG)

Increase the numbers of young people accessing IAG through digital media.
Youth Offer Element 2 – Voice and influence

Increase the numbers of young people participating in Youth Voice opportunities at all
levels.
Youth Offer Element 3 – Open access

Deliver a diverse youth offer through working in partnership with the Voluntary &
Community Sector (VCS) and local communities.
Youth Offer Element 4 - Targeted provision

Increase the number of specific interventions to address the needs of vulnerable young
people.
Youth Offer Element 5 - Active citizens and young people’s contribution to community life

Increase the number of young people having a positive impact on their community.
2.4

In terms of staffing, the Youth Service is managed as one service. Staff are
contracted to the Youth Service and are allocated to Areas. Appendix C outlines
the current allocation of Youth Service staff across the District.

3.

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS

3.1

Open Access Youth Provisions

Page1 28

Open access youth provision is delivered within all Wards in Bradford West, these
sessions create a safe space for young people to engage in positive informal
educative activities. Young people have the opportunity to engage in the planning,
delivery and evaluation of the twelve week programmes building their skills and
aspirations whilst working towards achieving accreditations. Appendix A – Bradford
West Youth Service What’s On Guide details the current provisions being delivered
within the Wards in Bradford West.
Bradford Youth Service West Ward Update (Appendix B) gives an overview of
some of the Youth Work being delivered in West, this document highlights groups
achievements, updates on the schools work, case work being undertaken and
includes details on the additional provisions in Bradford West.
3.2

Voice and Influence
Ten young people from Bradford West have completed training to become young
inspectors. The Inspectors programme involves young people going into
educational establishments including schools and completing audits on the delivery
of grant based projects. This gives young people an insight into grant processes,
delivery of programmes, the opportunity to meet other young people whilst
working within educational establishments to develop skills, gain experience, being
empowered to make decisions and offer information, advice and guidance. In
addition to the Inspectors programme young people who attend all of our provisions
are supported to engage in voice and influence programmes including planning of
provisions, attending scrutiny committees, becoming Ambassadors and the
interviewing of senior council candidates, all of which develop their pathways into
future educational and employment opportunities.

3.2

West Wide Provisions
Bradford West currently leads on the delivery of 10 area wide sessions weekly,
these sessions are for young people to attend from across Bradford West. The area
wide sessions are themed to suit young people’s needs, interests and increase our
Youth Offer. Bradford West leads on the central inclusion provision for the district
with a current membership of 80 young people. This provision supports young
people with additional needs to engage in positive activities with their siblings and
peers whilst being supported to engage in universal open access provisions.
Information regarding the West Wide provisions can be found in both Appendix A
and Appendix B.

3.3

LGBT+
The Bradford West team ensures LGBT + based work is delivered within all of our
provisions and as Bradford West does not deliver any provision directly for young
people who are LGBT+ we ensure young people are supported to access the 5
different sessions delivered by the Youth Service within Bradford City Centre.

3.4

Buddy support as part of Youth In Mind
Building on the continued success of the Buddies Work and our partnership within
the Youth In Mind (YIM) initiative the Youth Service has been re- commissioned to
deliver ‘Buddy Support’ to young people across the district.
2 29
Page

Youth Workers receive referrals from the Child and Adolescent Mental Health
Service (CAMHS), School Nurses & other professionals, the Youth Workers then
act as Buddies to the young people, their role is to befriend them, support them
using the Signs of Safety approach and navigate them to the various support
opportunities available to them.
All full time youth workers hold an additional caseload in schools, Delivering 1:1
work on a weekly basis developing young people’s confidence, self belief and
resilience. This supports working towards reducing the demand on specialist
services.
3.5

Other work targeted at young people with specific needs including CSE.
The Youth Service continues to provide direct support to young people at risk of
Child Sexual Exploitation. Youth Workers support the young people referred on a
1:1 basis and engage them in support opportunities available. Through
engagement with the Youth Service and following the support young people have
reported on feeling safer, they have an increased support network and due to
engaging in local provisions young people are feeling more connected within their
local communities. Bradford West currently runs a number of female only provisions
and YIM groups all of which offer young people a safe space to engage in positive
informal educative activities.

3.6

Early Help
Bradford Youth Service continues to work with the Early Help Team and supports
the area based panels. Through these panels young people are referred to the
Youth Service and are supported by the area Ward Youth Workers to engage in
localised youth provisions, YIM groups and for those who require it an offer of 1:1
support. The young people referred have been supported around a number of
issues including non engagement in education, anger management, family
breakdowns, Anti Social Behaviour (ASB) & domestic abuse, all of which helps to
prevent young people from entering the social care system and supports them into
a positive destination.

3.7

Changing Places
The youth service plays a pivotal role in supporting cohesion of young people
across the district; Bradford West has allocated a link worker to champion the
Changing Places programme. This innovative programme is focused on young
people from new migrant communities including those with refugee status. Bradford
West runs a very popular session on a Wednesday evening with over 60 young
people engaging weekly, we have successfully added additional projects on the
back of this popular activity including the delivering of a successful educational
support session weekly on a Saturday morning to further increase engagement and
integration

3.8

Future plans for the Youth Service in Bradford West and District wide
Whilst Youth Service activity is devolved to Areas many aspects of the Service
continue to operate at the District level. This may include the delivery of externally
Page3 30

funded programmes, Human Resource matters including staff recruitment,
agreements with Trace Unions, this is done to expedite efficiency and best value..
The Youth Service is subject to the Council’s overall corporate policies and
practice. Where opportunities arise for specialist Youth Work provision, these may
be delivered as part of a District wide provision. It is therefore necessary to work
closely between Area based operational delivery in terms of workforce and the
overall strategic development of the Youth Service.
At the time of writing this report, there is a proposed cut to the Youth Service base
budget of £513,000 from 2020-21 onwards. This equates to 25% of the current
Youth Service base budget at a District Level.
If the budget proposal to cut the Youth Service goes ahead, the Youth Service will
need to either make staffing cuts or find replacement funding from other sources.
This may have an impact on staffing levels in Bradford West and other Areas.
The Youth Service is seeking other funding opportunities to replace base budget. If
the Youth Service is successful in raising external funding, the work is likely to
become increasingly targeted to meet the specific requirements of funders.
Currently the Youth Service is working closely with the CCG’S around mental health
support to young people and youth work practice has proved to be a useful
approach to engaging these young people and making a significant difference to
their lives.
The Youth Service has recently been commissioned by the West Yorkshire Police
and Crime Commissioner (PCC) and the Home Office to deliver work to support
young people at risk of exploitation into organised crime. The Breaking the Cycle
project is providing funding for a team of our Youth Workers and one Youth Work
Manager. The funding for this pilot project is until March 2020. This requires the
work to be organised on a District wide basis to respond to emerging needs. The
Youth Service is also receiving some funding from the work on the Integration
Strategy and again this is being organised from a central role with close links to
Area Teams.
The Youth Service is also exploring the option of operating as a traded service with
schools. This includes Youth Workers offering youth work support in the District’s
secondary schools related to emotional needs.
If the Youth Service is successful in selling a service to schools, this will impact on
the work undertaken by Youth Workers, even if we do not need to reduce the
workforce. There is a risk that Youth Workers may have less time to deliver Youth
Work within community settings and this may impact on the neighbourhood based
delivery of open access sessions.
An indirect consequence of reductions in funding for the Youth Service and Council
services generally has been an ageing workforce. As the workforce across the
Council has reduced in numbers, there have been agreements in place to minimise
the impact on the existing workforce. This has had the unintended consequence of
4 31
Page

leading to an ageing workforce that is an issue across the Council and is
accentuated in a service that works with young people.
A healthy Youth Service team is one which can draw on the experience of people
from different backgrounds that reflect the wider community and a mixture of people
of ages adds positively to this mix.
To help address the workforce issue the service has recruited Apprentice Youth
Workers in the past 12 months. This has been possible through the use of external
funds, the apprenticeship levy and in the case of
Bradford West Youth team secured funding for an extra apprentice through base
budget support.
Future workforce development of the service will continue to
attempt to plan in a way that makes the service sustainable in the longer term.
Fundamental to the future sustainability of a Youth Service in the Bradford District is
that we have a workforce that enables a wealth of higher skilled and experienced
youth work staff to share their skills, knowledge and experience with younger
workers.
4.

FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL

4.1

This table highlights the Bradford West Youth Service base budget, the current
spend and the projected final year spend for 2018 – 2019.

Staffing budget
None staffing budget
Total
5.

West YS Base budget 2018-19 Spend to
Projected Spend
2018-19 Allocation
12/2/19
£392,000
£347,000
£379,000
£6000
£16000
£17,500
£398,000
£363,000
£396,500

RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES
The implementation of the planned budget savings for the Youth Service is subject
to the internal risk management plan of the Council and progress is reported to the
Place Departmental Management Team.

6.

LEGAL APPRAISAL
No issues.

7.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

7.1

EQUALITY & DIVERSITY
The Youth Service as part of the Council’s commitment to the District has a
responsibility to ensure that the service is accessible to all young people and that
participation in the service reflects this approach.

7.2

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS
The Youth Service delivery enables local initiatives to be supported, encouraging
groups and individuals to undertake activities that improve the social, economic and

Page5 32

environmental well being of their communities.
7.3

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS
Greenhouse gas emissions and wider environmental impacts was a consideration
of the Buildings Review.

7.4

COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS
Young people from across Bradford West engaging in weekly open access and
specialist provisions are directly and indirectly involved with supporting and
developing community safety within their local area. Voice and influence is central
to youth work delivery ensuring young peoples ideas, suggestions and thoughts are
heard.
The strengthened approach to the devolution of the Youth Service as will allow for:





7.5

an increased sense of local democracy for both young people and communities
young people to be more active in democratic, decision-making processes
alongside their political representatives
the voice and influence of young people to remain central, meaningful and
paramount in identifying and addressing needs and issues in their
communities
the requirements of the localism/devolution agenda to be met effectively and
efficiently

HUMAN RIGHTS ACT
There are no direct Human Rights implications arising from the recommendations
below.

7.6

TRADE UNION
All budget proposals are subject to consultation with the Trade Unions.

7.7

WARD IMPLICATIONS
The information in this report is related to all wards in the constituency and
appendix B outlines the Youth Service projects and activities delivered across
West.

8.

NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS
None.

9.

OPTIONS

9.1

That Bradford West Area Committee adopts the recommendations outlined in this
report.

9.2

That Bradford West Area Committee adopts the recommendations outlined in this
report, with amendments.
6 33
Page

9.3

That Bradford West Area Committee decides not to accept the recommendations
outlined in this report.

10.

RECOMMENDATIONS

10.1

That the work undertaken by the Youth Service in the Bradford West Area as
detailed in this report be welcomed.

11.

APPENDICES

11.1

Appendix A: Bradford West Youth Service – What’s On Guide

11.2

Appendix B: Bradford West – Youth Service Update

11.3

Appendix C: Bradford Youth Service Staffing Structures

12.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

12.1

Youth Service – Bradford West Area report. Bradford West Area Committee, 19th
September 2018.

Page7 34

Appendix A:
Bradford West Youth Service
What’s on Guide
January - March 2019
MANNINGHAM WARD
For more information contact Shaun Wilkinson 01274 434850 or shaun.wilkinson@bradford.gov.uk
Day/Time

Activity

Location

Frequency

Target group

Wednesday
6.00—9.00pm

Sharing Voices
YIM club

Sharing Voices
Manningham

Weekly

Open Session

Friday
6.30 - 9.00 pm

BYO Boys Youth
Group

BYO Boys
Bangladesh Youth Organisation

Weekly

Boys Provision

Saturday
4.00—7.00pm

BYO Girls Group

BYO Girls
Bangladeshi Youth
Organisation

Weekly

Girls Provision

CITY WARD
For more information contact Shaun Wilkinson on 01274 433550/ 07582 101 962 or email
shaun.wilkinson@bradford.gov.uk
Day/Time

Activity

Location

Frequency

Target group

Monday
5.30-8.30pm

Great Horton Youth
Group

Great Horton Village
Hall

Weekly

Eastern European young people and friends

Wednesday,
5.30 - 8.30pm

Horton Park Youth Club

Horton Park Youth
Club
Horton Park Bowling
Hut

Weekly

Open Session

Thursday,
6.30 - 8.30 pm

Outreach in Partnership
with BIASAN

Deaf Centre –Hallified
Road

Weekly

New Migrant young people and their friends

CLAYTON & FAIRWEATHER GREEN WARD
For more information contact Calais.Lawerence 07582101067or email calais.lawrence@bradford.gov.uk
Day/Time

Activity

Location

Frequency

Target group

Monday,
5.30—8.30pm

Clayton Open
Access Youth Club

Clayton Youth Project
Clayton Village Hall

Weekly

Open session

Tuesday,
6 00-9.00pm

Modern Day
Awareness
Project

Lower grange Youth club
Lower Grange Community
Centre

Weekly

Targeted

Thursday,
6.00 - 9.00pm

Lower Grange
Open Access
Youth Club

Lower Grange Youth Club
Lower Grange Community
Centre

Weekly

Open session

8 35
Page

THORNTON & ALLERTON WARD
For more information contact Calais.lawerence 07582101067or email calais.lawrence@bradford.gov.uk
Day/Time

Activity

Location

Frequency

Target group

Tuesday,
5.30-8.30pm

Thornton Open Access
Youth Club

Thornton Youth Club
Thornton Community
Centre,

Weekly

Open Session

Wednesday,
6.00.—9.00

Allerton Open Access
Youth Club

Allerton Youth Club
Weymouth Centre.

Weekly

Open Session

Friday
4.30—7.30pm

Football session

Football Session
Thornton Recreation
Centre

Weekly

Open session

TOLLER WARD
For more information contact Imran Hussain on 07582 100 174, Imran.hussain@bradford.gov.uk
Day/Time

Activity

Location

Frequency

Target group

Wednesday
6.00—9.00pm

Toller Detached

Detached within the
Girlington Area

Weekly

Detached Session

Wednesday
5.00 –8.00pm

Toller Youth Club

Toller Youth Club
Toller Youth Café

Weekly

Eastern European young people and friends

Thursday
5.00—8.00pm

Girlington Youth
Club

Girlington Community Centre

Weekly

Open Session

HEATON WARD
For more information contact Imran Hussain on 07582 100 174, imran.hussain@bradford.gov.uk
Day/Time

Activity

Location

Frequency

Target group

Tuesday,
6 00 - 900pm

Frizinghall Open
Access Youth
Club

Frizinghall Youth Project,
Frizinghall Community Centre

Weekly

Open Session

Thursday,
6.00 - 8.30pm

Howarth Road
Detached

Detached within the Haworth
Road area.

Weekly

Detached Session

Heaton Youth Project
St Barnabas Church Hall

Weekly

Open Session

Heaton Youth Project
St Barnabas Church Hall

Weekly

Open Session

Friday,
5.30—7.30pm

7.30 - 9.30pm

Heaton Girls
Youth Club
Heaton Boys
Youth Club

Page9 36

SCHOOLS WORK
For more information contact Kamrun Haq on 07582107053, Kamrun.Haq@bradford.gov.uk
Day/Time

Activity

Location

Frequency
Weekly

Target group

Monday
9 – 12PM

1:1 Support

Dixons Cottingley

YIM

Tuesday
9—12pm

1:1 Support

Belle Vue Girls

Weekly

YIM

Tuesday
9—12pm

1:1 Support

Oasis Lister

Weekly

YIM

Tuesday
9—12pm

1:1 Support

Dixons McMillan

Weekly

YIM

Tuesday
9—12pm

1:1 Support

Beckfoot Thornton

Weekly

YIM

Wednesday
9 -12pm

1:1 Support

Dixons Allerton

Weekly

YIM

Wednesday
2—4pm

Enrichment Programme

1 in a Million Free
School

Weekly

YIM

Bradford West Wide Constituency Wide
For more information contact Nicole Stott 07582101131, Nicole.stott@bradford.gov.uk
*(YIM) = Youth In Mind provisions targeting young people referred through the Buddies Project
Day / Time
Activity
Location
Frequency
Target Group
Monday
5 – 7pm

Toller YIM

Toller Youth Café

Weekly

Young People referred through the Buddies project

Monday
5 -7pm

Sound Group

Bradford City Centre

Weekly

LGBT+ Young People

Tuesday
4—6pm

Health & WellBeing Session (YIM)

Toller Youth Café

Weekly

All young people

Tuesday
6 – 8pm
Wednesday
4.30 – 7.30pm

Colour Youth
Movement

Bradford City Centre

Weekly

BME LGBT+ Young People

SPECTRUM

Bradford City Centre

Fortnightly

Under 16s LGBT+ Young people

Wednesday
6-8pm

Phoenix Trans
Youth Group

Bradford City Centre

Fortnightly

Trans Young People aged 13 – 21yrs

Thursday
6.30—8.30pm

STAR CLUB (YIM)

Culture Fusion

Weekly

Young People with disabilities and their friends.

Thursday
4pm—6pm
Thursday
4pm—6pm
Thurs
5 -7pm
Thursday
6.30—8.30pm

LAC provision (YIM)

Rowan House

Weekly

Looked After Young People

YOT Group session

Toller Youth Café

Weekly

Young people supported through YOT

Toller YIM

Toller Youth CAFÉ

Weekly

Young People referred through the Buddies project

Befrienders Group

Culture Fusion

Weekly

Young People with disabilities and their friends.

Friday
4.00— 6.00pm
Friday
4.30—6.30pm
Saturday
11.00—2pm

Inspectors Project

Toller Youth Café

Weekly

All Young People

R Space (YIM)

Culture Fusion

Weekly

Young People referred through the Buddies project

Homework Club

Toller Youth Café

Weekly

All Young People

Saturday
1 – 4pm

LGBT+ Community
Café

Bradford City Centre

Monthly

LGBT+ Young People

Monthly

Bradford West
Cycling Project
Faith Work

Lister Park

Monthly

All Young People across west

Bradford West
(Current project at
Victor Sreet
Mosque)

Weekly

All Young People

Weekly

10 37
Page

Appendix B:

Bradford Youth Service – West
Ward Update
February 2019
TOLLER WARD
Toller Youth Club runs on a Wednesday evening at TYC and has over 60
young people engaging weekly, the young people have just completed their
12 week programme and have engaged in a variety of issue based
workshops and informal educative activities.
A new provision has opened at Girlington Community Centre on a Thursday
evening and the young people are enjoying fitness workshops and issue
based discussions whilst developing their 12 week plans.
Youth Workers are undertaking outreach work weekly in the ward targeting
ASB hotspots areas and delivering consequence work to young people whilst
informing them of the local provisions on offer.
Bradford West Saturday Study Support club has been a great success for
young people to access educational support to aid them with their studies.
This provision has also created a safe space for young people to meet, make
friends and plan future projects around their interests.

MANNINGHAM WARD
A new provision has been developed and runs on a Wednesday evening
at Sharing Voices Manningham. This partnership project is focussing for
the next twelve weeks on engaging young people in positive activities &
experiences that supports their emotional well-being and builds
resilience.
Two sessions are currently been delivered in partnership with BYO on a
Friday and Saturday. Both groups have positively engaged in their
planned educative programmes and 45 young people have nearly
completed their accreditations.
The Bradford West Faith project is been delivered at Victor Street
Mosque. This project initially will be engaging the young people who
already attend the mosque and will encompass issue based workshops
and an archery session. This session starts on Tuesday 30th January
and will be running weekly 4.30 – 7.30pm. Following on from this project
the Youth Workers in partnership with the mosque are planning to
develop the space into an Archery Hub, which will then engage young
people from across West.

1138
Page

Bradford Youth Service – West
Ward Update
February 2019

CLAYTON & FAIRWEATHER GREEN WARD
Over the last 6 weeks the Young people at Lower Grange Youth Provision
have been participating in Boxercise sessions. It has been lovely to see
the participation level develop each week, especially the participation from
the young females who have been much less confident of engaging in the
past. On a Tuesday evening the Modern Day Awareness project is being
delivered to young people identified at risk of ASB. This programme
engages hard to reach young people to participate in high energy focused
based work and educational visits.
Clayton Youth Club has been supported by the Parish Council and the
young people have hosted Bradford West Cinema nights in partnership
with the Clayton Community Cinema, these events have been a success
within young people

CITY WARD
Great Horton Village Hall youth club runs on a Monday night and
regularly has over 50 young people in attendance. The young people
who attend the provision predominately identify as Eastern European and
they have being engaging well in the Changing Places Project. This
project has created opportunities for young people from across the
district to come together and engage in activities which is supporting
integration and community cohesion.
Horton Park youth club was a new provision which started in August
2018.
Youth sessions run from the old bowling hut every Wednesday evening.
Youth Workers undertaking outreach work in the summer has proved a
success as the club has a current membership of 50 young people which
reflects the diverse make-up of the communities surrounding the park.
The young people at the club have developed their 12 week plan and are
enjoying the weekly varied workshops. Outreach work is been delivered
in partnership with Biasan and the young people who access their
services are been supported into accessing youth service provision.

12 39
Page

Bradford Youth Service – West
Wide Provisions
February 2019

HEATON WARD
Heaton girls have just completed their 12 week programme around
body image, self esteem and confidence building. The young people
have all completed their accreditations and enjoyed a celebration meal.
Heaton boys have taken an interest in group discussions and political
thinking, the young people choose a weekly hot topic which could
reflect local, national or international issues and work as a group to
explore and debate this.
The young people have nearly completed their accreditations and are
planning their next 12 weeks of activity. Haworth Road detached team
work weekly engaging young people in issues based discussions and
inform them of local youth provisions available. The youth workers are
working with the ASB team to identify young people at risk and engage
with them and their families to offer diversionary activities and engage
them in consequence work.

THORNTON & ALLERTON WARD

g

The young people from Allerton Youth provision worked together to
produce a display to show some of the fantastic work they had done
throughout the year. On the 15th January, 3 Senior members from the
provision used the display and delivered a presentation to the Board
meeting of Saffron Dean Community Association.
Bradford West Five a Side football session takes place weekly at
Thornton Rec and this session has over 60 young people regularly
attending. Other than football youth workers deliver consequence work
and issue based workshops to the young people and over 40 young
people are working towards their accreditation.
Thornton Youth Club have been donated a number of musical
instruments from the Methodist Church, the young people within the
provisions are now putting these to good use and learning to play the
guitar & Keyboard. Hale has been working closely with the Youth
Service and in January they have been delivering healthy relationship
workshops, the young people from Thornton & Allerton have given
feedback on how valuable having access to this service is and that the
activities on offer from Hale were very informative and engaging.

1340
Page

Bradford Youth Service – YIM Case
study
February 2019

CASEWORK
All youth workers carry a caseload of young people whom have been
referred by professionals such as Early help, CSE Hub and the YIM buddy
scheme to provide one to one support around early intervention and
prevention. This work is needs based and for those who are vulnerable
and require more intense support with complex issues.
In order to support young people further youth workers support young
people into our Youth in Mind provisions which have been developed , set
up and successfully running across Bradford West. These sessions are
targeted provisions to working with those who are most vulnerable and
help them with existing issues, provide a platform for peer support, provide
tools to cope and recover all of which supports improving their health and
well being.

SCHOOLS WORK
Bradford West Youth Workers have initiated and developed school
sessions in a number of secondary schools across Bradford West. This
has involved building links and partnerships successfully with these
schools and helping them understand our offer. All full time youth workers
work within a school setting and offer one to one support weekly to
vulnerable young people around their specific needs the main focus being
emotional well being and mental health.
In addition to the one to one support, young people also have access to
the (YIM) online self care tool to support themselves with on going issues.
Already we have had some positive feedback from schools in relation to
how the one to one sessions are impacting positively upon those
individuals.

14 41
Page

Bradford Youth Service – West
Wide Provisions
February 2019

Young Female aged 14 (Identified as x)
X was referred to the buddy project by her CAMHS worker due to
issues of low mood, anxiety, gender identity and isolation. She had low
attendance at school and did not socialise outside of school.
During our initial assessment, X, Mum and I discussed the issues of
gender identity. It was clear that Mum was struggling with aspects of X’s
transition, I was able to do some work with Mum to help Mum
understand how important pro nouns and names are for Trans people.
After our initial assessment, we began working on a one to one basis
which enabled us to build a trusting relationship and discuss issues
affecting X’s life. We progressed from one to one session’s as I
introduced X to three other buddies with similar issues of anxiety and
isolation.
We met as a group weekly and engaged in a variety of sessions and
activities that would help them to understand issues of mental health
and how they can overcome them. They participated in sessions such
as; self esteem workshops, cook and eat sessions, Gaming session at
the Media museum, visit my mosque day and many more. This enabled
X to meet new young people who were experiencing similar issues and
whom lived in her local area. X really enjoyed this and was beginning to
build her confidence and develop a sense of self worth as well as make
new friends.
We tried to extend X’s engagement and support by attending a variety
of targeted provisions. We attended the Phoenix group which is a
targeted session for Trans young people and R space YIM session. X
was able to develop the confidence to change her name and Mum is
supportive in her transition.
The group and X were then integrated into the generic Youth Club
session in their local area where she attends independently every
week. X is now currently working on the young inspector’s project and
along with the other young inspector’s, is planning and delivering
inspections to school’s who were successful in obtaining funding to
deliver Essential Life skills projects.
X says; “Before I met my buddy I never liked leaving the house. Now I
look forward to going out with my friends and getting involved in youth
service provision. It’s changed my life so much.”

1542
Page

Bradford Youth Service – West
Wide Provisions
February 2019

Bradford West Wide Provisions
In addition to the Ward work and YIM provisions young people have
access to the area wide activities.
The Befrienders and volunteer project has recruited another 10 volunteers,
following their induction they will be out supporting provisions across West.
10 young people from West have become trained young inspectors, these
young people are undertaking weekly inspections in schools across
Bradford West auditing them following their ELS funding.
STAR club has young people with disabilities their friends and peers
engaging weekly in a variety of fun and inclusive activities. The young
people planned and hosted the district wide inclusion xmas party which
was a huge success and are now engaging in their healthier lives 12 week
programme.
The new Bradford West Health & Wellbeing session runs weekly from
Toller youth café in partnership with HALE, the young people are engaging
positively and have developed a healthy eating and lifestyle project.
Youth Workers in West also support and encourage young people to
access the district wide provisions these include 4 young people from West
participating in the Young Ambassadors Project, a number of young
people engaging in SOUND & Phoenix and young people regularly
participating in district wide events and activities.

Contact
For more information contact the ward lead in the area alternatively
please contact:
Nicole Stott
Advanced Practitioner Bradford West
07582101131 / 01274 431323 / Nicole.stott@bradford.gov.uk

16 43
Page

Appendix C
Defacto Youth Service Structures (Substantive posts (FTEs) and part time hours) February 2019
Bradford East (Staffing base budget = £385,000)
1 x Advanced Practitioner 26-29
1 x Youth Worker 20-23
4.5 x Youth Worker 16-19
0.5 x Youth Worker 12-15
1 x Apprentice Youth Worker
+ Up to 110 part time hours (combination of Youth Support Worker and Leaders in Charge
contracted and casual) from base budget.
East total substantive posts = 8
Bradford West (Staffing base budget = £385,000)
1 x Advanced Practitioner 26-29
2.5 x Youth Worker 16-19
3 x Youth Worker 12-15
3 x Apprentice Youth Workers
+ Up to 110 part time hours (combination of Youth Support Worker and Leaders in Charge
contracted and casual from base budget)
West total substantive posts = 9.5
Bradford South (Staffing base budget £314,000 + external £59k funding)
1 x Advanced Practitioner 26-29
1 x Youth Worker 20-23
3.5 x Youth Worker 16-19
1.0 x Youth Worker 12-15
2 x Apprentice Youth Workers

1744
Page

South total substantive posts = 8.5
+ Up to 90 part time hours (combination of Youth Support Worker and Leader in Charge
contracted and casual) from base budget
Keighley (Staffing based budget £314,000)
1 x Advanced Practitioner 26-29
0.5 x Youth Worker 20-23
4 x Youth Worker 16-19
2 x Apprentice Youth Workers
+ Up to 90 part time hours (combination of Youth Support Worker and Leader in Charge
contracted and casual) from base budget
Keighley total substantive posts = 7.5
Shipley (Staffing base budget £264,000)
1 x Advanced Practitioner 26-29
2.5 X Youth Worker 16-19
0.5 x Youth Worker 12-5
2 x Apprentice Youth Workers
+ Up to 90 part time hours (combination of Youth Support Worker and Leader in Charge
contracted and casual) from base budget
Total fte in Substantive posts = 6
District wide (funded by external funds)
1 x AP
4 x Youth Workers (Preventing Serious and Organised Crime)
Total District wide (including vacancies recruiting to currently) = 5

18 45
Page

APs District wide coordination responsibilities for the Youth Service
East – LGB and Trans work
West – None currently
South – Child Sexual Exploitation and Mental Health work
Keighley – Inclusion Work
Shipley – Youth Inspectors
District wide team – BOA Ambassadors, Workforce Development, Integration Strategy, Serious
Organised Crime and Detached work
NB Apprentices employed District wide but placed in above Areas. Bradford West have an
additional apprentice paid for out of base budget

1946
Page

Agenda Item 8/

Report of the Director of Place to the meeting of
Bradford South Area Committee to be held on 27
February 2019

AE
Subject:
BRADFORD WEST AREA COMMITTEE ALLOCATION OF COMMUNITY BUILDINGS
GRANTS FOR 2019 - 2021 AND APPROVAL FOR THE DISTRICT WIDE ALLOCATION

Summary statement:
This report outlines the recommendations of the Bradford West Area Committee Grants
Advisory Group for the allocation of Community Buildings Grants 2019-2021. It also
includes the recommendation of the Area Chairs for the District Wide allocation of
Community Building Grants 2019-21.

Steve Hartley
Director of Place

Portfolio:
Neighbourhoods and Community Safety

Report Contact:
Mahmood Mohammed
Phone: (01274) 437399

Overview & Scrutiny Area:

Corporate
Email:mahmood.mohammed@bradford.
gov.uk
Page 47

1.

SUMMARY

1.1

This report outlines the recommendations of the Bradford West Area Committee
Grants Advisory Group for the allocation of Community Buildings Grants 20192021, and the Area Chairs recommendations for the District wide fund.

2.

BACKGROUND

2.1

At the Bradford West Area Committee meeting on 28 November 2018 it was
resolved that:

2.2

Bradford West Area Committee notes the proposed allocation process for
Community Building Grants.

2.3

Bradford West Area Coordinator is requested to organise meetings of the Area
Committee’s Grant Advisory Group to consider Community Building Grant
applications for funding from groups within the Bradford West Area.

2.4

Bradford West Area Coordinator will bring a further report to a meeting within the
2018-19 municipal year, with recommendations from the Grant Advisory Group on
how to allocate the Community Building Grants funds available.

3.

OTHER CONSIDERATIONS

3.1

On 28 January 2019 the Grants Advisory Group met to discuss the Community
Buildings Grants applications submitted for the constituency. After full
consideration of all the bids the recommendations from the Bradford West Area
Grants Advisory Group are as follows:

BRADFORD WEST COMMUNITY BUILDINGS GRANT APPLICATIONS Table 1
Name:
2019-20
Subject to
Funding
2020-21
Bangladeshi Youth Organisation (BYO)
£4,500
£4,500
BEAP Community Partnership
£4,500
£4,500
Cafe West Healthy Living Centre
£8,000
£8,000
Frizinghall Community Association
£2,000
£2,000
Girlington Centre
£6,000
£0
Grange Interlink
£10,000
£10,000
Heaton Community Centre
£2,500
£2,500
Lower Grange Community Association
£7,000
£7,000
Millan Centre
£4,500
£4,500
Reach Beyond / The Millside Centre
£2,500
£2,500
St Peter's Parochial Church Council (PCC)
£750
£750
The Thornton and Allerton Community
Association Ltd (South Square Centre)
£7,500
£7,500
Thornton Community Centre
£3,000
£3,000
Manningham Project
£7,650
£7,650

Page 48

TOTAL
£70,400
£0
TOTAL
£70,400

Contingency

3.2

TOTAL
£64,400
£6,000
TOTAL
£70,400

At the Area Chairs meeting held on 11 February 2019 a presentation was made
regarding the applications made for support from the Community Building Grants. It
was resolved that allocations should be made as shown in Table 2 and be ratified
by the Bradford West Area Committee at it’s next meeting.

BRADFORD DISTRICT WIDE COMMUNITY BUILDINGS GRANT APPLICATIONS
Table 2
Name:
2019-20
(Subject to Funding)
2020-21
Community Buildings Grant Allocation
£26,375
£26,375
Additional Funding from 2018-19
Contingency
£7,536
£0
Equity Partnership
£3,886
£2,968
Safety First Community Training Centre
£4,125
£3,150
Sconce Camp Site (Aire Valley Scouts)
£2,000
£2,000
Bradford Community Broadcasting
£13,058
£9,503
Manningham Mills Sports & Community
Association
£8,842
£6,754
Total Grants Recommended for 19-20:
£31,911
Total Grants Recommended for 20-21:
£24,375
Unallocated contingency
£2,000
£2,000
Total Available
£33,911
£26,375

4.

FINANCIAL & RESOURCE APPRAISAL

4.1

The amount of funding per annum for the Bradford West Area was previously
£122,800 for 2017-2018 and also £122,800 for 2018-2019. This had been reduced
to £70,400 for each year in 2019-20 and 2020-2.

4.2

The Grants Advisory Group requested additional information from applications from
Girlington Community Centre and Millside Centre. After further enquiry it has been
established that a large reserve has been set up by Girlington Community centre for
roof and building repair which reduces significantly the free reserves they hold.
Millside Centre produced their national accounts which did not provide information
for their local needs. It has been ascertained that the local organisation is mainly
responsible for its own running costs.

4.3

The District Wide Community Building Grant Allocation for 2019-21 is £26,375 for
each of the next two years subject to funding being available. Bradford West Grants

Page 49

Advisory Group recommended that Manningham Mills Sports and Social Club be
presented to the Area Chairs group as a District Wide project although they had
applied to the Bradford West Area allocation.
4.2

This District wide allocation does now carry a contingency for £2,000 for 2019-20
and 2020-21which can be distributed at the Area Chairs discretion.

5.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND GOVERNANCE ISSUES

5.1

There are no direct specific risk management and governance issues.

6.

LEGAL APPRAISAL

6.1

This work relates directly to the Local Government Act 2000 and to the Duty of
Well-being placed upon the Council to promote and improve the well-being of the
District.

6.2

Under the Councils Constitution at Article 12, the Executive can delegate/devolve
the discharge of functions to Area Committees. In discharging these functions, all
decisions made must be in accordance with policies, strategies, plans or criteria
agreed by the Council or Executive and within the approved budget.

7.

OTHER IMPLICATIONS

7.1

EQUALITY & DIVERSITY

7.1.1 The progressive distribution of grants to Areas with higher level needs will aid the
development of initiatives which reduce inequalities.
7.1.2 Priorities supported will promote fairness and inclusion while supporting Bradford
West Area Committee’s commitment to equal opportunities for all, including those
protected characteristics identified within the Equalities Act 2010.
7.2

SUSTAINABILITY IMPLICATIONS

7.2.1 Resources available to Bradford West Area Committee, described in this report,
and used to support the Bradford West Area Ward Plans, will directly support the
delivery of the District’s Plan and promote and contribute to the People Can Make a
difference approach.
7.3

GREENHOUSE GAS EMISSIONS IMPACTS

7.3.1 Actions to assist in identifying the greenhouse gas impacts of potential projects to
be funded through this budget will be undertaken. These will include a
consideration of, for example, energy efficiency opportunities in purchasing new
equipment or refurbishing or modifying buildings.

Page 50

7.4

COMMUNITY SAFETY IMPLICATIONS

7.4.1 There are no direct community safety implications.
7.5

HUMAN RIGHTS ACT

7.5.1 There are no direct human rights implications.
7.6

TRADE UNION

7.6.1 There are no implications related to Trade Unions arising from this report.
7.7

WARD IMPLICATIONS

7.7.1 The activity outlined in this report affects the whole district and all organisations
which currently receive buildings related support in Bradford West. The creation
and devolution of the Community Building Grant to Area Committees has
established a more tailored provision and more accountability at ward and area
levels.
7.8

WARD PLAN IMPLICATIONS

7.8.1 The activities outlined in this report contribute to priorities within the Bradford West
Area Ward Plans.
8.

NOT FOR PUBLICATION DOCUMENTS

8.1

None.

9.

OPTIONS

9.1

Bradford West Area Committee adopts the recommendations outlined in this report.

9.2

Bradford West Area Committee adopts the recommendations outlined in this report,
with amendments.

9.3

Bradford West Area Committee decides not to accept the recommendations
outlined in this report.

10.

RECOMMENDATIONS

10.1

That Bradford West Area Committee approves the Community Buildings Grants
outlined in 3.1.

11.

APPENDICES

Page 51

11.1

None.

12.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS

12.1

Report to Bradford West Area Committee on the allocation of Community Building
Grants 2017-19. 23 November 2016

12.2

The Allocation of Community Buildings Grants (Extended Community Centre Core
Costs), Document R, Bradford West Area Committee, 28 November 2018.

Page 52

